Date:          May 4, 2020

From:        James Andrews
                  Vermont Reptile and Amphibian Atlas
                  642 Smead Road
                  Salisbury, VT  05769
                  jandrews@VtHerpAtlas.org
	        802-352-4734

To:            Misha Cetner
                  VT Department of Environmental Conservation
                  Davis Building - 3rd Floor
                  1 National Life Drive
                  Montpelier, VT 05620-3522

Re:               Recommendation to Deny Aquatic Nuisance Control Permit Request #3051 for Lampricide Treatments in the Lamoille River



Misha, this is my personal input rather than that of any organization or group that I am a part of.

I am opposed to the use of lampricides in the Lamoille River as requested in permit request #3051.  I do not believe that the proposed treatment meets the criteria of “acceptable risk to the non-target environment”.  This letter focuses only on the Mudpuppy (Necturus maculosus) and the Lamoille River treatment, but as you know, other listed and at risk species also suffer non-target mortality in the Lamoille and other treated rivers.

Unlike other amphibians that are killed by lampricides in only one life stage, the Mudpuppy is entirely aquatic and maintains its external gills throughout its life and consequently is sensitive throughout its life.  Although studies suggest that juveniles are more sensitive than adults, all age classes have been killed in past lampricide treatments.  Unfortunately, the distribution of Mudpuppies in the Lake Champlain basin is essentially identical to that of the sea lamprey.  It is found in the lake itself and in the lower portions of some of its tributaries. 
 
Concerns about the impacts of lampricide on this species have been expressed throughout the range of lampricide treatments. Gilderhaus and Johnson (1980) reported mortality in 32-36% of field observations and in up to 18% of the cases large numbers were killed.   Matson (1990) reported mortalities in the Grand River of Ohio of between 29-82% of the populations.  

As you may know, after the first treatment of the Lamoille River, 528 dead Mudpuppies of all age-classes were found in the 5% of the treated area that was surveyed.  By itself this is a very large taking and the very small section of the treated segment that was surveyed suggests that a much larger mortality event actually occurred.   In addition, this sort of survey only looks at very simplistic short-term direct mortality.  The applicant has provided no information on long-term, sub-lethal, or synergistic impacts on Mudpuppy or other non-target species.  The scientific literature is full of examples of unexpected impacts of this sort as a result of biocide use, yet no controlled studies of this sort have investigated the long-term, indirect, or synergistic impacts on river ecosystems of regular lampricide use.  It is the applicants responsibility to show that no such impacts occur, and they have not done so.  Data from New York State treatments show entire age-classes of Mudpuppies missing after treatments.  Despite claims of the applicant, there are no existing data that can be responsibly interpreted to show that these levels of mortality can be sustained. 

In our Vermont Reptile and Amphibian Database we have an approximate total of 1,432 reports of Mudpuppies from the Lake Champlain Basin between 1799 and the present.  I include only the basin reports although there is a population of Mudpuppies in the Connecticut River as well.  However, genetic tests have shown that the Connecticut River population is not our native stock and was introduced from a source in the mid-west.  Of these 1,432 Mudpuppy reports within the Lake Champlain Basin, 70% (1003) come from the Lamoille River.  Only 429 reports come from the Lake Champlain Basin outside the Lamoille River.   The Lamoille River appears to hold by far the largest population of Mudpuppies that we have in the basin.  The 528 reported dead after the first treatment of the Lamoille River  made up 37% of the total reports from the basin and 123% of the total reports from the Lake Champlain Basin outside the Lamoille River.  

As you may know, the Mudpuppy is a long-lived species.  It regularly reaches the age of 20 years or more. This means that a Mudpuppy in the Lamoille River would need to survive at least five treatments in order to live out its expected life span.  Data from Lewis Creek strongly suggest that the past lampricide treatments have reduced a small previous population of Mudpuppies to almost zero.  One of the purposes of a recent Mudpuppy study in the Lamoille River was to develop a successful method of capture for Mudpuppies.  This was done and the methods were then used at Lewis Creek with no success.  As a result of post-treatment non-target mortality surveys in Lewis Creek, 17 dead Mudpuppies were found in the subsample in 1990, 9 in 1994, and 0 in any treatment since.  This strongly suggests that the Lewis Creek population has been either eliminated or reduced to very low levels.  We should not let this happen at our best Mudpuppy river, the Lamoille.

Many Mudpuppies did survive the first treatment of the Lamoille.  Will the population survive multiple treatments?  Our standard for rare species with limited distribution should not be mere survival of an unknown percentage of the population.  Instead, we should try to do everything we can to enhance rare species, remove sources of mortality, and grow populations.  As you know, Mudpuppies are not a listed species in Vermont.  However,  primarily as result of lampricide-caused mortalities the Endangered Species Committee has recommended that the Mudpuppy be listed as threatened three times.  Each time the Secretary decided not to list the species, primarily based on the input of the Department of Fish and Wildlife.  As you are well aware, Vermont Fish and Wildlife is not a neutral party in that they were originally one of the applicants and dissenting positions among the staff are not forwarded to the Secretary. 

One of the responsibilities of the applicant per directive of previous ANR Secretaries has been to determine the distribution of the Mudpuppy elsewhere in the state, to see if it is indeed as localized as our data suggest.  This distribution part of the study has not yet been done. 

In 2007 the International Union for the Conservation of Nature approved and wrote guidelines for applying the Precautionary Principle.  One of the most widely cited definitions of this principle reads: 	Comment by Brittany A. Mosher:  


When an activity raises threats of harm to human health or the environment, precautionary measures should be taken even if some cause and effect relationships are not fully established scientifically.  In this context the proponent of an activity, rather than the public, should bear the burden of proof.

I would like to see this principle applied to the conservation of Mudpuppies in the Lamoille River.
 
As you may know, all pertinent Scientific Advisory Groups to the ESC (fish, inverts, herps) have recommended denial of previous lampricide requests that came to them.  My recommendation is halting lampricide use in the Lamoille River permanently.  Leaving this one river free of lampricide treatments as a refuge for this species and others seems like a minimal concession on the part of the applicant.

Thanks for your time and consideration.
